
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session. 

Please ask for: 
Jonah Anthony 

 
 

Wednesday 22 December 2021 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE to be held on Thursday 6 January 2022 at 
7.30 pm in the Council Chambers, Campus East, Welwyn Garden City, Herts, AL8 6AE 
  

 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
Governance Services Manager 
 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   SUBSTITUTION OF MEMBERS  
 

 To note any substitution of Members made in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rules. 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

3.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 1 November 
2021 (previously circulated). 
 

4.   NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 11  
 

5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on the Agenda. 

Public Document Pack



6.   SCRUTINY TASK AND FINISH PANELS (T&FPS) PROGRESS REPORTS 
AND/OR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

 To receive progress reports and/or recommendations from Scrutiny Task and 
Finish Panels (T&FPs), if any. 
 

(a)    HOUSING MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS TASK & FINISH PANEL 

(Pages 5 - 22) 
 

(b)    BUDGET SETTING TASK AND FINISH PANEL  
 

7.   DATE AND TIME OF UPCOMING SCRUTINY TASK AND FINISH PANELS 
(T&FPS)  
 

8.   RESPONSE FROM CABINET/COUNCIL TO RECOMMENDATIONS FROM 
SCRUTINY TASK AND FINISH PANELS (T&FPS)  
 

 To note the response from Cabinet/Council to recommendations from the 
Committee and Scrutiny Task and Finish Panels (T&FPs). 
 

9.   COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2020/21 (Pages 23 - 42) 
 

 The pro-forma sets out a draft of the Committee’s work programme for comment.  
The work programme enables forward planning of items to be considered to take 
place. In addition, the Forward Plan and Key Decision List are attached for 
Members to consider. The Scrutiny Scoring Form is available to assist in 
determining the value of any potential scrutiny. 
 

10.   COUNCILLOR CALL FOR ACTION  
 

 To receive and consider any requests by a councillor to scrutinise any matter 
relevant to the functions of the Committee. 
 

11.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION  
 

12.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 The Committee is asked to resolve: 
 
That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for Item 13 (if any) on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as defined 
in Section 100(A)(3) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as amended). 
 
In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 

 



 
PART II - PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS 

 

13.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF A CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT NATURE AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN  
 

 
Circulation: Councillors B.Fitzsimon (Chairman) 

H.Quenet (Vice-Chairman) 
L.Chesterman (Vice-
Chairman) 
S.Elam 
G.Hayes 
A.Hellyer 
S.Kasumu 
 

F.Marsh 
G.Michaelides 
P.Smith 
C.Stanbury 
T.Travell 
R.Trigg 
 

    
 Corporate Management Team 

Press and Public (except Part II Items) 
 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Jonah 
Anthony, Governance Services on 01707 357413 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Part I 
Item No:  
For Decision 

 
 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 6 JANUARY 2022 
 
Observation and recommendations from the Housing Maintenance Task and Finish 
Panel: 
 
 
Please note all evidence can be seen in the attached reports: 
 
Appendix A – Minutes from Panel meeting (22 November 2021) 
Appendix B – Minutes from Panel meeting (16 December 2021) 
Appendix C – Window replacement guidelines (suggested revision) 
 

1. The Council is currently undertaking a stock condition/asset grading exercise - this 
Panel asks that the outcome is brought to Cabinet Housing Panel (CHP) and suggests 
to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) that once this work is complete a 
further task and finish panel should be convened to review this, and its progress. 
 

2. We would like to see the results of this piece of work informing the development of a 
robust planned maintenance programme. 
 

3. This Panel also recommends a complete review of the housing complaint process to 
be carried out in a timely manner at the next available point. This should also include 
the measuring and reporting of complaints, and the communication process with 
residents. 
 

4. We recommend the Council puts in a considerable effort into clearing the backlog of 
long-term/historic complaints/cases with regular updates being presented to CHP;  and 
that the Council should undertake a review of the Service Level Agreements (SLA) for 
maintenance and repair works to ensure residents have fair and realistic expectations. 
This should be accompanied by a robust monitoring of works to ensure they meet the 
SLA. 
 

5. We recommend that the Housing Maintenance team work with the Communications 
team to produce a proactive communications campaign aimed at encouraging tenants 
to inform the Council of any mould or maintenance issues as soon as they arise, rather 
than delaying and allowing the situation to worsen. 

 

Mould 
 

6. Councillors asked for a mapping exercise to be completed across the borough to locate 
any areas with mould as an issue, and alongside this reviewed a sample of mould 
complaints/repair requests from the last 12 months, ensuring the sample covered 
Welwyn Garden City and Hatfield equally. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6a



 

7. Age and condition of property is a contributing factor to the presence of mould in 
properties, and the lack of a robust planned maintenance programme has likely 
contributed to the development of mould in these properties. 
 

8. Based on the evidence provided and the sampling reviewed by Councillors there was 
no one prevailing cause of mould in properties in Welwyn Hatfield. Although there’s no 
denying that mould is a prevalent issue for a considerable number of residents and in 
turn on the maintenance of council properties. 

 

9. There needs to be ongoing consideration given to the regular upkeep of properties and 
a fully inclusive planned maintenance schedule. 

 

10. The Task and Finish Panel fully supports proposals to introduce consistent and regular 
gutter maintenance on all properties within the housing stock - as this will limit potential 
damage to properties going forward. We would like to see this undertaken as regularly 
as possible, and as outlined by officers, expect a cycle of 18 months to be the aim. 
This should be done in conjunction with regular tree maintenance to reduce the 
pressure on gutters of higher, more difficult to access buildings - taking into 
consideration where this would be of most benefit (i.e. areas with denser tree coverage 
where gutters are more likely to be blocked.) 
 

11. Again, working with the Communications team, a proactive communications campaign 
aimed at informing residents on what they can do to limit mould growth in their 
properties should be undertaken - but care taken as to not imply that lifestyle is the 
sole cause for mould in properties - as we have seen that this is not the case. 

 

Voids 
 

12. As with the tackling of mould, the instances of ‘exceptional’ voids by-in-large stems 
from a lack of regular maintenance on Council properties. The completion of the asset 
grading exercise alongside the increase in the 5-year planned maintenance 
programme will go some way in tackling the issues leading to longer void times. 

 

Windows 
 

13. The Task and Finish Panel recommends removal of specific rooms in the window 
replacement guidelines when it comes to the replacement of blown/misty DGUs (see 
suggested revision in Appendix C). The T&F group notes that the Council is looking at 
a significant increase in the 5-year planned maintenance programme for replacement 
doors and windows and recommend that this goes ahead - with reporting on progress 
to be made available to members via the member information centre. 

 
 
 

Page 6



-1- 
 
Housing Maintenance (Task and Finish Panel) 
22 November 2021 
 

 
 

WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the HOUSING MAINTENANCE (TASK AND FINISH PANEL) 
held on Monday 22 November 2021 at 5.30 pm via MS Teams 

 
PRESENT: Councillors M.Holloway, B.Fitzsimon, C.Stanbury, H.Quenet and 

C Juggins 
 

ALSO 
PRESENT: 
 

F. Thomson (Executive Member for Housing and Climate Change) 

OFFICIALS 
PRESENT: 

Chief Executive Officer (K. Ng) 
Housing Property Consultant (B. Opacic) 
Asset Manager (P. Horsley) 
Principal Governance Officer (J. Anthony) 

 
 
12. APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTION OF MEMBERS 

 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor J. Cragg and the following 
substitution of a Committee Members was made in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rules: 
 
Councillor C. Juggins for Councillor J. Cragg. 
 

13. SCRUTINY SCOPING DOCUMENT 
 
Members noted the scoping document and the questions previously agreed by 
the Panel. 
 

14. RESPONSE TO TASK AND FINISH PANEL QUESTIONS 
 
Officers spoke to a report setting out answers to the questions and sub 
questions the Panel had raised.  
 
Question 1: This group would like to understand the extent of council 
owned properties experiencing issues with damp and mould. 
 
Members noted that there had been 522 cases of damp and mould raised with 
the Council in the last 12 months. This represented about 5% of the council’s 
housing stock. These cases were evenly distributed across the borough, with the 
exception of two clusters at Howard House and Hawbush Close.  Officers 
confirmed that they were looking at the use of new techniques and technologies 
to address damp and mould issues with non-traditional builds and older 
properties. 
 

Page 7



-2- 
 
Housing Maintenance (Task and Finish Panel) 
22 November 2021 
 

 
 

The following points were raised and discussed: 
 

• Members discussed the need to educate residents on actions they could 
take to reduce the risk of damp and mould occurring. Officers confirmed 
that advice was made available to residents by contractors and officers 
when on site, and a leaflet was being updated, which would include the 
latest advice to residents.  Advice was also provided on the Council 
website, through the One magazine, residents’ newsletter and the team 
would consider how best to use social media 

• Officers reassured Members that a damp and mould problem would not 
wholly be attributed to a resident’s lifestyle, and there was a recognition 
that a number of variables which contributed to damp and mould issues 
would be outside of the resident’s control 

• Members noted issues for residents residing in flats owned by private 
landlords but located in a block owned and managed by the council 

• Members agreed that effort must be made to deal with those issues in the 
Council’s control, such as fixing roofing problems, clearing gutters and 
addressing water penetration issues 

• In response to a question Officers confirmed that the statistics reflected 
old cases which had now been closed 

• Officers explained some issues would be resolved through the planned 
works programme, but others would need considerably more investment 
and would be incorporated into the component replacement programme 
and/or a longer-term investment programme  

• Furthermore, the Council would need to consider what investment needs 
to take place in order to meet carbon reduction targets in 2030 and 2050.  
Officers had already begun to look at new technology and techniques, 
and expected the whole housing sector to produce new ways in which to 
upgrade older and non-standard buildings 

• It was noted that the majority of the 135 calls which were classified as “not 
specified in call” were due to condensation problems (in addition to the 53 
calls which had been classified as “condensation” problems). Officers 
agreed to provide information behind the condensation issues being 
experienced by residents 

• It was recognised that some issues were a result of modern living in older 
properties and in some incidents, there was limited actions the Council 
could take without upgrading the property or replacing it.  

• Members questioned the viability of continuing to deploy temporary fixes 
to older properties. Officers recognised that there were issues with the 
housing stock and asset suitability, and confirmed that an asset grading 
review would be undertaken 

• Members noted the 11 revisits that had taken place and enquired as to 
why those revisits were needed. Officers agreed to collate and provide the 
information to Members 

 

Page 8



-3- 
 
Housing Maintenance (Task and Finish Panel) 
22 November 2021 
 

 
 

Question 2: To examine the condition of the oldest 10% blocks of flats and 
all of the sheltered accommodation. To seek assurance that a robust 
planned maintenance schedule exist for these accommodation. 
 
Officers outlined the Council’s approach to creating an Asset Grading Model 
(ASAP) to ensure the Council understood its housing stock. 
 
Officers explained that properties would be assessed and split into three 
categories. The first group would be for properties considered to be in good 
condition and not in need of major repairs. The second group would consist of 
properties that required investment. The third group would be for those 
properties which would need to be replaced as they were unpopular, could not 
be let and/or would be too expensive to renovate.  In response to a question 
Officers confirmed Members’ and Residents’ views would be sought. 
 
Members were keen to ensure short term actions were not being delayed whilst 
the Council undertook the Asset Grading exercise. 
 
Members acknowledged that the Asset Grading Model would not be complete 
before the Task and Finish Panel concluded and considered a proposal to 
include in its recommendations that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
consider looking at this in the 2022/23 municipal year. 
 
Question 3: Regarding recently let properties, is the Council ensuring that 
residents are letting the property from void at the best possible standard? 
 
Officers spoke to the report. Officers confirmed that the properties were no 
longer being let with maintenance issues. In response to a question, Officers 
agreed to provide a breakdown of the different turnaround categories (V5, V10, 
V15 and VE (Exceptional)).  
 
Members noted the incidents when properties were returned to the Council in 
bad condition and the opportunity to learn lessons when properties were 
returned and initially let to new tenants. 
 
Members asked to see a sample of inspection reports from the oldest blocks.  
Given the number of properties, Members agreed to a sample size of 5%, but did 
request that the sample covered both Hatfield and Welwyn Garden City equally, 
and included the older bungalows located in Whitebeams. 
 
In response to a question, Officers agreed to circulate information about those 
instances where new tenants called in problems with their new homes during the 
recall period. 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



-4- 
 
Housing Maintenance (Task and Finish Panel) 
22 November 2021 
 

 
 

15. ADDITIONAL SCOPE AGREED AT FULL COUNCIL ON 17 NOVEMBER 2021 
 
Members noted the extended scope of the Task and Finish Panel, as agreed at 
full Council on 17 November 2021, to review the Council’s Window Repairs and 
Replacement Policy. Members raised questions about whether windows located 
bedrooms were treated as priorities, and whether the Council sought to replace 
whole windows (as opposed to simple individual windowpanes). Officers agreed 
to provide answers at the next Panel meeting. 
 
Members were asked to review the policy and send through observations, 
questions and suggested amendments to Officers. 
 

16. NEXT STEPS 
 
Members agreed to reconvene on Thursday 16 December 2022, at 5pm, via MS 
Teams.  Officers would provide the additional information requested. 
 
The Panel would then seek to update the Overview and Scrutiny Committee at 
the January meeting, and report fully at the March meeting 
 

 
Meeting ended at 7.06pm 
JA 
 

 

Page 10



-1- 
 
Housing Maintenance (Task and Finish Panel) 
16 December 2021 
 

 
 

WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the HOUSING MAINTENANCE (TASK AND FINISH PANEL) 
held on Thursday 16 December 2021 at 5.00 pm via MS Teams 

 
PRESENT: Councillors M.Holloway, B.Fitzsimon, C.Stanbury, H.Quenet and C 

Juggins 
 
ALSO 
PRESENT: 

 
F. Thomson (Executive Member for Housing and Climate Change) 

  
OFFICIALS 
PRESENT: 

Chief Executive Officer (K. Ng) 
Housing Property Consultant (B. Opacic) 
Team Leader – Responsive Repairs (J. Beare) 
Democratic Services Assistant (V. Mistry) 

 
 
17. APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTION OF MEMBERS 

 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor J. Cragg and the following 
substitution of a Committee Member was made in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rules: 
 
Councillor C. Juggins for Councillor J. Cragg. 
 
It was noted that Councillor C. Juggins was present for items 4 and 5 of the 
agenda (items 19 and 20 in the minutes) while Councillor J. Cragg was present 
for item 6 of the agenda (item 21 in the minutes). 
 

18. MINUTES 
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 22 November 2021 were agreed as a correct 
record and noted by the Chair. 
 

19. DAMP AND MOULD ISSUES 
 
Officers presented a report in response to a a number of questions and requests 
for information raised by Members with regards to Damp and Mould issues.  
 
The first request was for Officers to provide a breakdown of the outcomes 
of a sample of 5% of inspection reports (15 reports) for older properties (to 
include one from Whitebeams, Southbound Road) and specifically to detail 
what had caused the damp & mould, and what solutions were agreed? 
 
The following points were discussed: 
 

• There were 306 related inspections.  

Page 11



-2- 
 
Housing Maintenance (Task and Finish Panel) 
16 December 2021 
 

 
 

• The primary causes of mould and damp were roofs, lagging to pipework, 
leaks in pipes, condensation and water penetration. 

• Members asked if damp and mould were a main concern in older 
properties? Officers stated that there were a lot of properties in the 
Council’s housing stock that were 60 to 80 years old. More recently built 
properties from the 1990s would have had better insulation and thermal 
protection in comparison to the older properties. 

• It was noted that prefab housing with the flat roofs may display building 
defects as they were designed to be used for 50 to 60 years. However, 
the Council could still maintain these properties by retrofit actions such as 
implementing cavity wall insulation and installing new windows with good 
ventilation.  

• Members asked what would happen when there is an issue of 
condensation in the property?  Officers stated that it may have been 
caused by the tenant’s lifestyle, and as such it was always a good idea to 
inspect the property and look for mould and damp. It was stated that 
contractors may use a wash kit to remove the mould from the walls. 
However, not all mould was caused by condensation. 

• It was also stated that tenants were also asked to open windows and 
ensure the heating was on in the property. Unfortunately, some tenants 
had difficulties in affording to heat their homes, which created difficulties 
in identifying easy to implement solutions.  Another solution was to install 
passyfier vents to allow airflow without having to open windows.  

• Members noted that it was a good idea to make sure all notes of 
maintenance and inspections were recorded and logged for future 
reference.   

• Members asked about air bricks and if they could be used to address the 
problem of damp and mould.   Officers stated that if it is a ventilation 
issue, the Council was more likely to install passyfier vents rather than air 
vents but were happy to look into the use of air vents if they were shown 
to be more effective in dealing with damp and mould issues.  

• Members wanted to know what percentage of condensation issues had 
been received and logged. Officers stated that they would find out the 
percentage and look at the calls logged, and subsequent advice given to 
residents. 

 
Members asked Officers to set out the remedial actions that were taken in 
each case. 
 
The following points were discussed: 
 

• Water Penetration - 33 reported cases 
• Members noted that some of the remedial actions taken were gutter 

cleaning, gutter repairs, chimney repointing and wet moss cleared and 
sealed. 

• Members noted that the Council would be implementing a gutter cleaning 
programme which could help with internal damp issues and help with 
referral requests from residents.  

Page 12



-3- 
 
Housing Maintenance (Task and Finish Panel) 
16 December 2021 
 

 
 

• Members asked whether the gutter programme could benefit other council 
properties and not just sheltered housing or shared accommodation? 
Officers confirmed that all Council properties have regular maintenance or 
annual clearance, but officers would look at regularly maintaining the 
guttering on bungalows and high properties. It was suggested that 18 
months was a good length of time to look at between maintenance 
schedules, with the regular cleaning of gutters an encouraging sign for 
residents.  

• It was noted that the Council use a tool called a Sky Vac to clear gutters 
regularly and can be used on properties that are up to 3 storeys. They 
also have cameras fitted to them to allow contractors to spot any defects 
on the guttering. 

• It was noted that old guttering should be looked at as it may be damaged 
and needs replacing and was part of the Council’s asset grading process. 
Officers stated that older properties may have different guttering such as 
steel gutters and these can be situated differently on the property and can 
be harder to maintain than plastic guttering.  

• Members asked about higher properties and if there was a way to put 
mesh over the guttering?  Officers stated that the Council did have some 
properties that had mesh over guttering but were not sure if they were 
effective.  Officers stated that they would assess the properties and check 
whether they are effective in stopping the gutters being covered. 

 
Members ask what were the outcomes in each instance of repeat 
inspections? 
 
Members noted that there were 11 occurrences of Repeat inspections. 
 
Officers stated that this was an IT system error. It was repeated information and 
the information had now been removed from the system.  Officers stated that it 
was not to say that the Council did not receive repeat call outs for work repairs. 
 
What were the outcomes of these complaints? 
 
The following points were discussed: 
 

• There were 46 Complaints received. 
• 27 complaints completed and closed. 19 complaints open & subject to 

ongoing investigation (awaiting works). 
• Some of the complaints were on roofing, guttering, installation vents, and 

extractor vents. It was noted that there was a complaint that the 
Ombudsman were looking into and there were 3 that had been completed 
but needed to be closed on the system.  

• Members noted that the complaints were all different and not just in one 
area. 

• Members asked if at the last meeting, they requested a sample of 
complaints. Officers stated that an outcome was requested but were 

Page 13



-4- 
 
Housing Maintenance (Task and Finish Panel) 
16 December 2021 
 

 
 

happy to provide members with a sample of complaints and their 
outcomes.  

• Members noted that complaints were complicated as cases could go on 
for a while and Members did not always know the outcomes.  

 
20. VOIDS 

 
Officers presented a report in response to a number of questions and requests 
for information raised by Members with regards to Void properties. 
 
Members requested that officer provide an address list of a random sample 
of 5% of these void properties (23 properties) that were void and since 
been re-let in the past 12 months. This sample should be evenly spread 
across Welwyn and Hatfield. 
 
Members noted that during the period from August 2020 to July 2021 a total of 
458 properties were re-let. 
 
Members noted that the properties in Appendix A were a random sample of 5% 
of the void stock. 
 
Members noted that the void type ‘Exceptional’ voids would have a need for 
intensive works on the property.  
 
Members asked if at the last meeting they had asked to see numbers instead of 
properties. Officers stated that they could provide members with numbers of 
voids and would categorise them as five working days, ten working days, fifteen 
working days and exceptional.    
 
Members asked if the working days was the aspiration to achieve the turn 
around on properties? Officers stated that it was the aspiration to turn around the 
property on repairs.  
 
Members asked officers to state, of this 5% sample, how many repair jobs 
were raised in the first 6 weeks of the new tenancy? 
 
Officers confirmed that there were 3 requests for follow on works and the 
information was provided in Appendix B. 
 
The works orders had been raised once tenants had moved in.  Members noted 
that this was low number and was encouraging to see. 
 
Members asked officers to provide a breakdown of the different turnaround 
categories (V5, V10, V15 and VE (Exceptional)).  
 
Officers provided the breakdown in Appendix 3 of the report. 
 
 
 

Page 14



-5- 
 
Housing Maintenance (Task and Finish Panel) 
16 December 2021 
 

 
 

The following points were discussed: 
 

• There were 4 categories, the first 3 were measured in working days and 
the type of works that would have to be completed.  

• Members noted that work increases from the amount of working days. It 
was noted that five working days was doing health and safety checks, 
EPC and completing an asbestos report.    Ten working days was 
electrical and gas works, carpentry works and minor plastering works.   
The fifteen works days looked at full rewiring, new kitchen and bathroom.  
The exceptional works looked at full property restoration including 
replacing windows and doors.  

• Members asked how many exceptional voids had come through in the last 
year? Officers stated that the voids were mainly due to wear and tear or 
length of tenancy or vandalism.  

• Members asked if the Council had to pay for tenants to stay somewhere 
else due to the repairs? This may happen if the property needs serious 
works done due to wear and tear such as rewiring or decorating. 

• It was noted that some contractors have difficulty accessing properties 
that were being lived in while carrying out repairs and maintenance on 
voids. 

• It was noted that the majority of the wear and tear came from properties 
that should have had things replaced years ago such as their kitchen. 

• It was noted that some properties were not well respected, and the 
Council has a system in place where a surveyor would visit properties and 
note the damage.   If damages are identified, the instances are passed to 
the Neighbourhood teams to follow up with tenants to retrieve the cost of 
the damage.  

• Officers stated that there could be difficulty with suppling materials and 
the Council needed to allow for the works to be planned. However, the 
contractor’s performance was monitored through KPIs, especially with 
regards to meeting the targets of five, ten and fifteen working days.  

 
21. WINDOWS 

 
Officers presented a report in response to the three questions asked by 
Members with regards to the Windows policy. Those questions were: 
 

1) In the last 12 months, how many windows were reported? 
 

2) Can these reports be broken down by room? 
 

3) How many windows (not units) were replaced? 
 
The following points were discussed: 
 

• In the last 12 months 351 windows were reported & the subsequent 
repairs were broken down as follows: Windows Broken – 71, Faulty 

Page 15



-6- 
 
Housing Maintenance (Task and Finish Panel) 
16 December 2021 
 

 
 

Mechanism handles or hinges – 254, Misted DGU (double glazed units) – 
23. 

• It was noted that the Council were not able to record repair requests by 
room. 

• It was noted that 3 entire windows were replaced. 
• The Council did not have a policy for replacement of double glazed units 

(dgu), but they did have guidance notes which stated that only misted 
units to the lounge, kitchen or dining room of a property should be 
replaced. There was general agreement amongst Members that this 
guidance should be changed and that all misted units should be replaced, 
irrespective of where the window was located. Officers confirmed that 
they would investigate this change in policy 

• It was noted that the cost of replacing a DGU was £150 and the cost of 
replacing a full window was £450.  

• The Council was proposing a significant increase in the 5 year planned 
programmes for replacement of doors and windows, which would be 
considered as part of budget setting process. It would be better to carry 
out a whole house replacement of doors and windows in a planned 
(capital investment) programme as opposed to replacing failed individual 
units in the responsive (revenue) programme. This may also help, in 
terms of the offer of an interim DGU replacement, if residents know that 
their home was included in a planned programme for windows and doors 
to be replaced.  Members agreed that this was a better solution for the 
programme.  

• Members asked about Misted DGU windows and asked what happened 
now that the guidance had changed? The Council would need to 
implement a plan program and also a grading model.  

• It was noted that a change in guidance was needed. Members agreed 
that 4 years was too long to wait for replacement windows and agreed 
that 18 months was a better timescale.  

 
22. TIMESCALES AND REPORTING TO OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

 
Members discussed the timescale for the Task and Finish Panel to report back 
to the Overview and Scrutiny committee.  
 
Members agreed that they would combine the information they had found and 
gathered and come up with recommendations to take to OSC on the 6 January 
2022.  
 
Members wanted to focus on helping tenants and had found some solutions in 
some areas of Housing Maintenance. 
 

23. DATE AND TIME FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
It was agreed that the next meeting of the Housing Task and Finish Panel would 
be held on Wednesday 22 December 2021 at 6pm via Teams to discuss 

Page 16



-7- 
 
Housing Maintenance (Task and Finish Panel) 
16 December 2021 
 

 
 

recommendation and information to take to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.  
 
It was agreed that the additional information that Members asked for at this 
meeting will be discussed at the next meeting.  
 

 
Meeting ended at 6.37 pm 
VM 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Property Services (Housing) 
Window Repairs and Replacement 

 
 

1. Date of Guidelines: August 2020 

2. Review Date: December 2021 next review December 2024 August 2023 

3. Responsibility:  Commercial Manager  

4. Purpose of Guidelines:  
 

The purpose of these guidelines is to outline the Council’s responsibility for repair and replacement of windows 
within properties owned by the Council. 

 
5. Aims of the Guidelines: 

 
 The aims of these guidelines are as follows: 

• To ensure a consistent approach to repairs 
• Contribute to the efficient maintenance of the housing stock 
• Contribute to the effective management of the repairs budget, ensuring value for money 

 
6. Guideline Details 
 
6.1 Overall statement 

 
• The Council will carry out general repairs as a result of normal wear and tear, such as ease and adjust 

windows. 
 

• The Council will carry out ‘make safe’ repairs to any windows deemed unsafe that it is responsible for i.e. 
boarding up of broken windows, this includes garages and sheds.  

 
• Any tenant damage will be recharged back to the resident. The Rechargeable Repairs Guideline and Rates 

sets out how the council deal with recharges, available on our website, www.welhat.gov.uk 
 

• The Council will take into account the age of the windows including whether they are still under guarantee 
in determining if repair works are to be carried out.   

 
• Leaseholders will need to refer to the Leaseholders Handbook available from the Home Ownership Team 

on 01707 357000 or by emailing homeownershipaccounts@welhat.gov.uk which explains in detail what 
parts of the property are their responsibility and what the Council is responsible for. 

 
6.2 Procedure 

 
Before raising any repair the Council will check to see if the windows are still under warranty or due for 
replacement in the near future.  Where the repair item is still under warranty, this work will be carried out 
under that warranty.  

 
Where the windows are due to be replaced within the next 12-18 months, the Council will only carry out minor 
repairs unless there are exceptional reasons for major repairs or replacement.  The Council will make 
reference to the Housing, Health and Safety Rating System, available at www.GOV.UK and consider 
replacement where this determines that there is significant hazard(s) caused by defective windows(s). 

 
 Risk of falling out and cannot be refixed 
 They do not protect from the elements  
 Scaffolding is already erected and a replacement is deemed  

necessary  
 
 

Page 19

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/
mailto:homeownershipaccounts@welhat.gov.uk
http://www.gov.uk/


 
 

 
 

7. Information for tenants 
 

• Double glazed sealed units  
 
Where there is a pool of water or misting between the panes of glass the council will; 

 Replace Consider replacement of the glazed sealed unit (not the complete window) but only in the 
lounge, kitchen or dining room. (These rooms are considered as priority for viewing).  
 

 If a tenant requires other windows to be replaced this can be arranged at their own cost and 
undertaken privately.  Before any work is undertaken you will need to complete a Home 
Improvements and Alterations Application form, available on our website, www.welhat.gov.uk 
 

The replacement of the double glazed sealed unit will only be considered as below: 
 

 Where the window is not under guarantee or due for replacement within the next 18 months.  
 

 Where windows are due for replacement a decision will be made on whether the severity requires it to 
be repaired before replacement. You will be informed of this decision within 14 working days, the 
works will then be raised in line with our current repair targets. 

 
• Cracked glazed unit  

 
 The Council, depending on the severity of the crack, will make safe, within 24 hours, i.e. board up/apply 

safety film until the glazed unit can be replaced. Please refer to sub-heading “Damage”. 
 

• Single glazed window 
 
 The Council depending on the severity of the crack will make safe, within 24 hours, i.e. board up/apply 

safety film until glazing can be replaced.  Please refer to sub-heading “Damage”. 
 

• Non-standard windows 
 
 If windows are non-standard, any repair or replacement may not be able to match the original design or 

style of the council’s materials used.  If you live in a conservation area they should be repaired wherever 
possible or replaced with ones that match the originals as closely as possible.  Please refer to sub-
heading “Conservation Areas”. 

 
• Damage  

 
 Repairs that are needed because of damage or neglect to the window by tenants, a member of their 

household or any visitor to the property, or pets, will be recharged unless a crime reference number 
that identifies you have been a victim of a crime is provided. 
 

• Loss of window keys 
 
 If window keys are lost, and you require a replacement, this will be recharged in line with the 

Rechargeable Repairs Guideline and Rates. 
 

 
8. Information for Leaseholders  

 
 Works under warranty will be carried out free of charge by the council however on expiry of any 

guarantee / warranty the repair will be the responsibility of the leaseholder. 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 20

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/


 
 

 
 

 The Council is only responsible for window frames/sashes within the property and glass in the 
windows of communal areas. 
 

 We may give permission for you to carry out works such as window replacements; however this does 
not remove your responsibility under the terms of your lease to contribute towards block 
charges should we undertake a programme of improvements to your block. 

 
 Before any work is undertaken you will need to complete a Home Improvements and Alterations 

Application form, also known as a Licence to Alter, available on our website, www.welhat.gov.uk or 
upon reasonable request from the Home Ownership Team. Certain restrictions may apply.   

 
9. Conservation Areas  

Conservation Areas means that planning policies are in place to preserve and enhance the character or an area 
and to resist poor quality development proposals that would harm its character. 
 
The success of conservation areas often depends on the care which owners take with the maintenance and 
repair of their properties.  
 
Even small changes can detract from the special character of an area. For example original doors and windows 
should be repaired wherever possible or replaced with ones that match the originals as closely as possible. 
 
Nationally permitted development rights do not exist in a conservation area. Those wishing to make changes to 
the external appearance of their property, need planning permission. You must be mindful of even the smallest 
changes which might detract from the special character of the area.  
 
The Council ranks breaches of planning control as a higher priority in conservation areas and is more likely to 
take enforcement action against such breaches. 
 
Please contact planning@welhat.gov.uk if you have any queries. 
 
10. Partners 

 
 The Council’s contractors who deliver our repairs and maintenance services will carry out these repairs. 

 
11. Health and Safety 

 
If the Council is made aware of any Health and Safety breach, action will be taken to make safe and, where 
appropriate, recharge for any works undertaken. 

 
12. Data Protection 

When you make a complaint, we will log information about your complaint and your name and contact details. 
Information will only be collected and stored for the purposes of dealing with your complaint and improving our 
services. Your complaint and details will be treated confidentially.  

All complaints are treated confidentially. Notwithstanding the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 

Please refer to the council Data Protection guidelines: http://www.welhat.gov.uk/Data-Protection 

13. Equality Act 2010  

The Equality Act ensures that an individual should not be discriminated against on any of the following 
grounds: age, disability, gender reassignment, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation, marriage and 
civil partnership and pregnancy and maternity.  

 

 

Page 21

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/
mailto:planning@welhat.gov.uk
http://www.welhat.gov.uk/Data-Protection


 
 

 
 

For more information on this policy, please visit: http://www.welhat.gov.uk/equality 

14. Value for Money 
 

The Council will look to achieve value for money taking into consideration the medium/longer term rather than 
the short term.  

15. Consultation  

We will consult with the Welwyn Hatfield Tenant and Leaseholder Scrutiny Panel over any changes to these 
guidelines. 

16. Key related documents  

 Excluded Licence Agreement 
 Tenancy Agreement  
 Rechargeable Repairs Guidelines and Rates  
 Home Improvements and Alterations Application form (also known as a Licence to Alter) 
  
 Most documents are available on our website, www.welhat.gov.uk or upon reasonable request. 

17. Review 

This guideline will be subject to review every three years, with interim revisions to be made on an exceptional 
basis in light of any legislative or regulatory changes, or in line with best practice. 

Page 22

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/equality
http://www.welhat.gov.uk/


OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  Updated December 2021    
OVERVIEW WORK PROGRAMME 2021-22  

 
* Please note that the highlighted items are statutory requirements for scrutiny by local authorities. 

 
Members of the Committee can, during the course of the year, add items within 

 the remit of the Committee that they wish to be considered and discussed. 
 

 

Meeting Date Report Topic What is the Outcome or 
Output required? 

Author (s)  

Monday 5 July 2021 Housing Maintenance and Repairs  To consider update from the T&F Panel Governance Services 

Monday 1 November 2021 Affordable Housing: 9,000 Level 

 

 

 

ASB, Noise Nuisance and Pest Control 
Issues 

To consider report on the rational behind 
the 9,000 level set for affordable 
housing in the Borough 

 

To consider presentation on how the 
Council deals with such issues effecting 
people in their homes 

Sian Chambers 

 

 

 

Neighbourhood Team and 
Environmental Health Team 

Thursday 6 January 2022 

 

Annual Budget Setting 

 

Housing Maintenance and Repairs 

To consider report from the T&F Panel 

To consider update from the T&F Panel 

Finance Team  

 

Governance Services 

Monday 14 March 2022 Review of provision of health services in the 
borough * 

 

Review of provision of the discharge of 
crime and disorder services in borough * 

Review of new Waste and Recycling 
contract 

To discuss annual report and feedback 
any recommendations 

 

To discuss annual report and feedback 
any recommendations 

 

To consider report on how the new 
Ubaser contract is performing 

Joanna Harding 

 

 

Sian Chambers 

 

 

Environment Team 

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
PUBLICATION OF DECISION LIST NUMBER 12/21-22 

 
MUNICIPAL YEAR 2021/22 

 
Date Published: 3 December 2021 

 
This document lists the decisions taken by the Cabinet at its meeting on 30 November 2021.  The list covers key and non-key decisions.  
These decisions will come into force within ten working days of the date of this document (i.e. 17 December 2021) unless the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee calls a decision in. 
 
Cabinet decisions are subject to pre-implementation review through the following call-in procedure:- 
 
Decisions that involve expenditure over £100,000 or that affect more than one ward can be called in. “Call-in” requires at least a quarter of the 
Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to request the “call-in”, in writing, within four working days of the publication of the decision 
by the Cabinet, to be effective.  A Notification of Call-in Form can be obtained from and should be completed, signed and returned to Alison 
Marston, Governance Services Manager.  Either a special meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to consider the “called-in” item(s) 
will be convened within three working days of the call-in request or the item will be placed on the Agenda of the next available meeting of the 
Committee, depending on which can be achieved earliest.  The Call-In procedure does not apply where the decision being taken by the 
Cabinet is urgent. 
 
Where the Overview and Scrutiny Committee is of the opinion that an executive decision which relates to an area covered by the Committee 
yet to be made or made but not yet implemented would be, contrary to the policy framework, or contrary to or not wholly in accordance with 
the Council’s budget, then it should seek advice from the Monitoring Officer and/or Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural 
Services). 
 

 
If you have any queries or wish to obtain further report information or information on a decision please refer to: 

Alison Marston, Governance Services Manager at the Council Offices, Campus East, 
Welwyn Garden City, Herts AL8 6AE 

Telephone number (01707) 357444 or e-mail a.marston@welhat.gov.uk 
 

P
age 25

mailto:g.seal@welhat.gov.uk


 

 

Cabinet Decisions 
Tuesday 30 November 2021 

SUBJECT / TITLE OF REPORT 

Now Housing Limited Progress Report 
 

 

Part 1 or 2 
(Relevant 
exempt 

Paragraph)  

Wards affected by 
the Decision 

Interest 
declared in 
respect of 

the Decision 

Category of 
Decision (i.e. 

Key, Non-
Key, Urgent) 

 

Contact Details Eligible for Call-In & Date to 
be called in by 

1 
 

All Wards 
 

No Forward Plan 
Reference 

FP1090 
  

Stuart Pearson 
Tel: 01707357742 

s.pearson@welhat.gov.uk 

Yes 
9 December 2021 

 

DECISION: 

Cabinet noted the update on the performance of Now Housing Limited and approved the updated Business Plan. 
 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 26

mailto:s.pearson@welhat.gov.uk


 

Cabinet Decisions 
Tuesday 30 November 2021 

 
 

SUBJECT / TITLE OF REPORT 

Parking Works Programme 2022-24 
 

 

Part 1 or 2 
(Relevant 
exempt 

Paragraph)  

Wards affected by 
the Decision 

Interest 
declared in 
respect of 

the Decision 

Category of 
Decision (i.e. 

Key, Non-
Key, Urgent) 

 

Contact Details Eligible for Call-In & Date to 
be called in by 

1 
 

All Wards 
 

No Forward Plan 
Reference 

FP1075 
  

Eliska Robova 
Tel: 01707 357514 

e.robova@welhat.gov.uk 

Yes 
9 December 2021 

 

DECISION: 

(1) Cabinet approved the new Works Programme 2022-2024, as outlined in the Cabinet Planning and Parking report with the exception 
of Robin Hood Lane/The Common & Pine Grove. 

 
(2) Cabinet agreed to give delegated authority to the Head of Environment in consultation with Executive Member for Resources to 

make minor adjustments to the programme, in order to assist with the delivery of Council’s corporate projects as and when required.   
 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 27

mailto:e.robova@welhat.gov.uk


 

Cabinet Decisions 
Tuesday 30 November 2021 

 
 

SUBJECT / TITLE OF REPORT 

Grants Board - 3 November 2021 
 

 

Part 1 or 2 
(Relevant 
exempt 

Paragraph)  

Wards affected by 
the Decision 

Interest 
declared in 
respect of 

the Decision 

Category of 
Decision (i.e. 

Key, Non-
Key, Urgent) 

 

Contact Details Eligible for Call-In & Date to 
be called in by 

1 
 

All Wards 
 

No Non-Key 
  

Sian Chambers 
Tel: 01707 357640 

s.chambers@welhat.gov.uk 
 

No 
 

 

DECISION: 

Cabinet agreed that the inclusion of £73,270 for Annual Community Grants in the draft 2022/23 Council budget be confirmed, and that 
this was allocated according to the recommendations set out in the minutes of the Grants Board of 3 November 2021. 
 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 28

mailto:s.chambers@welhat.gov.uk


 

Cabinet Decisions 
Tuesday 30 November 2021 

 
 

SUBJECT / TITLE OF REPORT 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT MID-YEAR REPORT 2021/22 
 

 

Part 1 or 2 
(Relevant 
exempt 

Paragraph)  

Wards affected by 
the Decision 

Interest 
declared in 
respect of 

the Decision 

Category of 
Decision (i.e. 

Key, Non-
Key, Urgent) 

 

Contact Details Eligible for Call-In & Date to 
be called in by 

1 
 

All Wards 
 

No Non-Key 
  

Richard Baker 
Tel: 01707 357425 

r.baker@welhat.gov.uk 
 

No 
 

 

DECISION: 

Cabinet noted the current treasury position and Treasury Management Indicators. 
 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 29

mailto:r.baker@welhat.gov.uk


 

Cabinet Decisions 
Tuesday 30 November 2021 

 
 

SUBJECT / TITLE OF REPORT 

PERFORMANCE EXCEPTION REPORT - QUARTER 2 (2021-22) 
 

 

Part 1 or 2 
(Relevant 
exempt 

Paragraph)  

Wards affected by 
the Decision 

Interest 
declared in 
respect of 

the Decision 

Category of 
Decision (i.e. 

Key, Non-
Key, Urgent) 

 

Contact Details Eligible for Call-In & Date to 
be called in by 

1 
 

All Wards 
 

No Non-Key 
  

Thom Burn 
Tel: 01707 357245 

t.burn@welhat.gov.uk 
 

No 
 

 

DECISION: 

Cabinet noted the contents of the report and approved any proposed actions highlighted in the appendices. 
 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 30

mailto:t.burn@welhat.gov.uk


 

Cabinet Decisions 
Tuesday 30 November 2021 

 
 

SUBJECT / TITLE OF REPORT 

COUNCIL ACHIEVEMENTS LIST (JULY-SEPTEMBER 2021) 
 

 

Part 1 or 2 
(Relevant 
exempt 

Paragraph)  

Wards affected by 
the Decision 

Interest 
declared in 
respect of 

the Decision 

Category of 
Decision (i.e. 

Key, Non-
Key, Urgent) 

 

Contact Details Eligible for Call-In & Date to 
be called in by 

1 
 

All Wards 
 

No Non-Key 
  

Thom Burn 
Tel: 01707 357245 

t.burn@welhat.gov.uk 
 

No 
 

 

DECISION: 

Cabinet noted the report and contents of the Achievements List. 
 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 31

mailto:t.burn@welhat.gov.uk


 

Cabinet Decisions 
Tuesday 30 November 2021 

 
 

SUBJECT / TITLE OF REPORT 

Award of contract for development of 20 affordable units at Swallowfield's 
 

 

Part 1 or 2 
(Relevant 
exempt 

Paragraph)  

Wards affected by 
the Decision 

Interest 
declared in 
respect of 

the Decision 

Category of 
Decision (i.e. 

Key, Non-
Key, Urgent) 

 

Contact Details Eligible for Call-In & Date to 
be called in by 

2 
 

All Wards 
 

No Forward Plan 
Reference 

FP1081 
  

Harvinder Sarohi-Parhar 
Tel: 01707357723 

h.parhar@welhat.gov.uk 

Yes 
9 December 2021 

 

DECISION: 

(1) Cabinet received a report on the status of the current development agreement for the site. On the basis of the details as set out in 
the report, Cabinet agreed to the termination of this agreement, on the terms to be finalised through officers; 

 
(2) In accordance with paragraph 14(k) of the Contract Procedure Rules, Cabinet agreed, for the reasons set out in the report, that it 

was to the advantage of the Council that a direct award of the contract should be made to Boom Construction Limited for the carrying 
out of works to complete the Swallowfields development; and, 

 
(3) Cabinet agreed to delegate authority to the Section 151 Officer in consultation with the Executive Member for Resources to 

determine and approve virements from within the overall affordable homes programme budget allocation to meet any increased 
costs identified. Any balance of cost that cannot be funded through virement should be incorporated as part of the 2022/23 budget 
setting process. The council had employed a Quantity Surveyor to assess costs, to ensure value for money was achieved. 

 

 
 
 

P
age 32

mailto:h.parhar@welhat.gov.uk


 

Cabinet Decisions 
Tuesday 30 November 2021 

 
 

SUBJECT / TITLE OF REPORT 

Housing Maintenance Procurement Update 
 

 

Part 1 or 2 
(Relevant 
exempt 

Paragraph)  

Wards affected by 
the Decision 

Interest 
declared in 
respect of 

the Decision 

Category of 
Decision (i.e. 

Key, Non-
Key, Urgent) 

 

Contact Details Eligible for Call-In & Date to 
be called in by 

2 
 

All Wards 
 

No Forward Plan 
Reference 

FP1088 
  

Andrew Harper 
Tel: 01707357371 

a.harper@welhat.gov.uk 

Yes 
9 December 2021 

 

DECISION: 

Cabinet noted the update provided in the report. 
 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 33

mailto:a.harper@welhat.gov.uk


 

Cabinet Decisions 
Tuesday 30 November 2021 

 
 

The following decisions have been taken during the period 3 November to 30 November 2021 using 
Executive Member Decision Notices. 
 

SUBJECT / TITLE OF REPORT 

Article 4 Direction – Additional Storeys in Hatfield 
 

 

Part 1 or 2 
(Relevant 
exempt 

Paragraph)  

Wards affected by 
the Decision 

Interest 
declared in 
respect of 

the Decision 

Category of 
Decision (i.e. 

Key, Non-
Key, Urgent) 

 

Contact Details Eligible for Call-In & Date to 
be called in by 

1 
 

All Wards in Hatfield 
 

No Forward Plan 
Reference 

FP1080 
  

Matt Pyecroft 
Tel: 01707 357510 

m.pyecroft@welhat.gov.uk 
 

Yes 
26 November 2021 

 

DECISION: 

To agree to confirm an Article 4 Direction to remove Permitted Development rights around creating additional storeys on blocks of flats in 
Hatfield. 
 
(Note: This decision was taken by Executive Member Decision Notice). 
 
Date this decision was taken – 16 November 2021 
Date of publication of the decision – 22 November 2021 
 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

P
age 34

mailto:m.pyecroft@welhat.gov.uk


 

Cabinet Decisions 
Tuesday 30 November 2021 

 
 
 

SUBJECT / TITLE OF REPORT 

Private Sector Housing Assistance Policy 
 

 

Part 1 or 2 
(Relevant 
exempt 

Paragraph)  

Wards affected by 
the Decision 

Interest 
declared in 
respect of 

the Decision 

Category of 
Decision (i.e. 

Key, Non-
Key, Urgent) 

 

Contact Details Eligible for Call-In & Date to 
be called in by 

1 
 

All Wards 
 

No Forward Plan 
Reference 

FP1077 
  

Jo Smith 
Tel: 01707 357571 

j.smith3@welhat.gov.uk 
 

Yes 
26 November 2021 

 

DECISION: 

The 2021 Private Sector Housing Assistance Policy would be published. 
 
(Note: This decision was taken by Executive Member Decision Notice). 
 
Date this decision was taken – 18 November 2021 
Date of publication of the decision – 22 November 2021 
 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

 

P
age 35

mailto:j.smith3@welhat.gov.uk


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

- 1 - 
Date: 22 December 2021 

 

 
 

WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
 

FORWARD PLAN 
 

FOR THE PERIOD 1 FEBRUARY 2022 TO 31 MAY 2022 

REF: 0222 

 
The Forward Plan sets out the Key Decisions which are to be taken by the Cabinet (and where appropriate the Council) during the period 
covered by the Plan.  The Plan is updated each month and is available from Council Offices and libraries and on the website 
(www.welhat.gov.uk).  A Key Decision is one which is likely to result in expenditure or savings of above £100,000, or to have an effect on 
communities living or working in an area comprising two or more Wards of the Borough. 
 

Members of the public are welcome to comment on any item on the Forward Plan.  Any comments must be given in writing or by e-mail to the 
Governance Services Manager to be received no later than seven days before the meeting at which the decision is to be taken.  Copies of 
available reports can be obtained from the contact shown in the Forward Plan.  
 

Members of the public are also welcome to attend public meetings of the Cabinet.  Cabinet meetings are held at the Campus East, Council 
Offices, Welwyn Garden City and start at 5.00pm.  During the period of this Plan meetings will be held on:- 
 

Tuesday 1 February, Tuesday 1 March and Tuesday 29 March 2022 
 

The following Councillors are in the Cabinet:- 
 

T.Kingsbury -  Leader of the Council 
D.Bell - Deputy Leader of the Council and Executive Member, Resources 
  
S.Boulton -  Executive Member, Environment, Planning, Estates and Development 
N.Pace - Executive Member, Governance and Public Health 
B.Sarson -  Executive Member, Leisure and Community Safety 
F.Thomson -  Executive Member, Housing and Climate Change 
 

Any queries concerning the Forward Plan should be directed to Alison Marston, Governance Services Manager at the Council  
Offices, Campus East, Welwyn Garden City, Herts AL8 6AE telephone number (01707) 357444 or e-mail a.marston@welhat.gov.uk. 

P
age 37

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/
mailto:g.seal@welhat.gov.uk


 

 
 

WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
 

FORWARD PLAN 
 

FOR THE PERIOD 1 FEBRUARY 2022 TO 31 MAY 2022 

 

 

 

- 2 - 
Date: 22 December 2021 

REFERENCE 
AND 

SUBJECT 

DECISION NEEDED WHEN WILL 
DECISION 
BE TAKEN 

WHO WILL 
BE 

CONSULTED 

METHOD OF 
CONSULTATION 

REPORTS AVAILABLE 
AND CONTACT 

OFFICERS 

EXECUTIVE 
MEMBER 

FP1097 IT 
Consultancy 

To consider Award of 
contract for the 
appointment of a 
consultant to oversee 
the IT transformation. 

Portfolio 
Holder 
Decision 
Notice – 20 
January 2022 

Procurement 
Board 

By reports Procurement Manager 
Andrew Harper 
Tel: 01707357371 
a.harper@welhat.gov.uk 

Councillor Duncan 
Bell 
 

FP1086 Budget 
Proposals and 
Medium Term 
Financial 
Forecasts 
2022/23 

Approval of the 
Revenue, Capital and 
Housing Revenue 
Account Budgets, Fees 
and Charges and 
Council Tax Setting 
2021/22 
 
Approval of the 
Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 
2021/22-2023/24 
 
Approval of the Capital 
Strategy and Treasury 
Management Strategy 

18 January 
2022 – Special 
Cabinet 
 
2 February 
2022 - Council 

Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee, 
Local 
Businesses 

Reports/Meetings Head of Resources 
Richard Baker 
Tel: 01707 357425 
r.baker@welhat.gov.uk 

Councillor Duncan 
Bell 
 
 
 
 
 

FP1102 LGA - 
Corporate Peer 
Challenge 

Approve Peer 
Challenge action plan 

1 February 
2022 - Cabinet 

Corporate 
Management 
Team 

By Reports Chief Executive 
Ka Ng 
Tel: 01707357275 
k.ng@welhat.gov.uk 

Councillor Tony 
Kingsbury 
 

P
age 38

mailto:a.harper@welhat.gov.uk
mailto:r.baker@welhat.gov.uk
mailto:k.ng@welhat.gov.uk


 

 
 

WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
 

FORWARD PLAN 
 

MONTH PERIOD 1 FEBRUARY 2022 TO 31 MAY 2022 

 

 
 

 

- 3 - 
Date: 22 December 2021 

 

REFERENCE 
AND 

SUBJECT 

DECISION NEEDED WHEN WILL 
DECISION 
BE TAKEN 

WHO WILL BE 
CONSULTED 

METHOD OF 
CONSULTATION 

REPORTS AVAILABLE 
AND CONTACT 

OFFICERS 

EXECUTIVE 
MEMBER 

FP1099 
Procurement 
Boards 

To consider 
Procurement Boards 

1 February 
2022 - Cabinet 
 
16 March 2022 
- Council 

Constitution 
Review Group 

By reports Procurement Manager 
Andrew Harper 
Tel: 01707357371 
a.harper@welhat.gov.uk 

Councillor Duncan 
Bell 
 
 
 

FP1095 Home 
Ownership 
Policy 

Approve new Home 
Ownership Policy. 

1 February 
2022 - Cabinet 

Cabinet 
Housing Panel 
Resident Panel 

By Reports Income and Home 
Ownership Manager 
Simon Kiff 
Tel: 01707 357067 
s.kiff@welhat.gov.uk 

Councillor Fiona 
Thomson 
 

FP1100 Minor 
Building Works 

To consider Award of 
contract for Minor 
Building Works. 

1 February 
2022 - Cabinet 

General 
Procurement 
Board 

By reports Procurement Manager 
Andrew Harper 
Tel: 01707357371 
a.harper@welhat.gov.uk 

Councillor Duncan 
Bell 
 

FP1093 Housing 
Maintenance 
Procurement 
Update 

To provide an update 
on the project. 

1 February 
2022 - Cabinet 

Finance 
Legal 

By reports Procurement Manager 
Andrew Harper 
Tel: 01707357371 
a.harper@welhat.gov.uk 

Councillor Fiona 
Thomson 
 

FP1072 
Appointment of 
Auditors - 
Opting into 
National PSAA 
Scheme 

To agree whether to 
opt into the national 
scheme for local 
auditor appointments. 

2 February 
2022 - Council 

Audit 
Committee on 
31 January 
2022 

Report Head of Resources 
Richard Baker 
Tel: 01707 357425 
r.baker@welhat.gov.uk 

Councillor Duncan 
Bell 
 

P
age 39

mailto:a.harper@welhat.gov.uk
mailto:s.kiff@welhat.gov.uk
mailto:a.harper@welhat.gov.uk
mailto:a.harper@welhat.gov.uk
mailto:r.baker@welhat.gov.uk


 

 
 

WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
 

FORWARD PLAN 
 

MONTH PERIOD 1 FEBRUARY 2022 TO 31 MAY 2022 

 

 
 

 

- 4 - 
Date: 22 December 2021 

 

REFERENCE 
AND 

SUBJECT 

DECISION NEEDED WHEN WILL 
DECISION 
BE TAKEN 

WHO WILL BE 
CONSULTED 

METHOD OF 
CONSULTATION 

REPORTS AVAILABLE 
AND CONTACT 

OFFICERS 

EXECUTIVE 
MEMBER 

FP1101 
Bereavement 
Services 

To consider Award of 
contract for 
Bereavement Services. 

1 March 2022 
- Cabinet 

Procurement 
Board 

By reports Procurement Manager 
Andrew Harper 
Tel: 01707357371 
a.harper@welhat.gov.uk 

Councillor 
Stephen Boulton 
 

FP1079 
Howlands 
House and 
Burfield Close 
Redevelopment 

Award of Contract for 
the Construction 
contract for the 
redevelopment of 
Howlands House and 
Burfield Close. 

1 March 2022 
- Cabinet 

Affordable 
Housing 
Procurement 
Board 

By Reports Procurement Manager 
Andrew Harper 
Tel: 01707357371 
a.harper@welhat.gov.uk 

Councillor Fiona 
Thomson 
 

FP1089 New 
Park Road 
Development 

Award of construction 
contract for the 
redevelopment of New 
Park Road. 

1 March 2022 
- Cabinet 

Affordable 
Housing 
Procurement 
Board 

By Reports Procurement Manager 
Andrew Harper 
Tel: 01707357371 
a.harper@welhat.gov.uk 

Councillor Fiona 
Thomson 
 

P
age 40

mailto:a.harper@welhat.gov.uk
mailto:a.harper@welhat.gov.uk
mailto:a.harper@welhat.gov.uk


Scrutiny Scoring Matrix 
 
 

ASSESSMENT 
 

Public Interest + Strategic Value + Risk + Corporate Priorities + Financial Value   =   Scrutiny 
Value Score 
 
 Numerical score 

Public Interest low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

Strategic Value low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

Risk to Council or service delivery low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

Alignment to Corporate Priorities low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

Financial Value low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

  

Scrutiny Value Score 
 

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
 Numerical score 

Issue of concern for partners? low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

Will the Council be able to achieve an 
effective outcome? 

low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

Will there be potential benefits for a 
significant part of the community 
/partners/stakeholders or the Council? 

low 
1 

medium 
2 

high 
3 

  

Additional Score 
 

  Total Score  

 

Total Score Result and Guidelines for Further Action 
 
< 9 Low Priority - add to the committee work programme if priority changes/add 

information on Member Information Hub 
 
>10 Medium Priority - Request a report to OSC, hold a single scrutiny event or set up a 

Task and Finish Panel (T&P).  
 
 

> 15 High Priority - Request a report to OSC, hold a single scrutiny event or set up a Task 
and Finish Panel. To take precedence over issues of medium priority.  

 
Resources  After selection and in the event of competing priorities, 

consideration should be given by the committee on any necessary 
resources required to deliver the topic to scrutiny. 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6a HOUSING MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS TASK & FINISH PANEL
	Item 6a Appendix A - Minutes Housing Task and Finish (22.11.21)
	Item 6a Appendix B - Minutes Housing Task and Finish (16.12.21)
	Item 6a Appendix C - Window Repairs and Replacement August 2020
	When you make a complaint, we will log information about your complaint and your name and contact details. Information will only be collected and stored for the purposes of dealing with your complaint and improving our services. Your complaint and det...
	All complaints are treated confidentially. Notwithstanding the Freedom of Information Act 2000.
	Please refer to the council Data Protection guidelines: http://www.welhat.gov.uk/Data-Protection
	The Equality Act ensures that an individual should not be discriminated against on any of the following grounds: age, disability, gender reassignment, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation, marriage and civil partnership and pregnancy and ...
	For more information on this policy, please visit: http://www.welhat.gov.uk/equality
	We will consult with the Welwyn Hatfield Tenant and Leaseholder Scrutiny Panel over any changes to these guidelines.
	17. Review
	This guideline will be subject to review every three years, with interim revisions to be made on an exceptional basis in light of any legislative or regulatory changes, or in line with best practice.


	9 COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2020/21
	Item 11. Cabinet Decisions 2021.11.30
	Item 11. Forward Plan key decisions 2022.02 to 2022.05
	ScrutinyScoringMatrixForm


